MINUTES OF A MEETING OF THE LICENSING SUB-COMMITTEE Council Chamber - Town Hall 7 October 2019 (10.30 - 11.45 am)

Present:

COUNCILLORS

Conservative Group Christine Smith (Chairman), Bob Perry and Nisha Patel

Present at the hearing were Mr Philip Cooke Ms Alisson Taffs (Applicants), Mr Gerald Harrington (Licensing Agent).

Also present was an objector, Mr M Mckenna

Also in attendance was Mr Paul Jones, Public Protection Officer, the Legal Advisor to the Sub-Committee and the Clerk to the Licensing Sub-Committee.

The Chairman reminded Members of the action to be taken in an emergency.

1 APPLICATION FOR A PREMISES LICENCE - HOP INN 122 NORTH STREET, HORNCHURCH, RM11 1SU

DETAILS OF APPLICATION

The application for a new Premises Licence was made by the above applicant, under section 17 of the Licensing Act 2003. The application was received by London Borough of Havering on the 15th August 2019.

The Licensing Sub-Committee must promote the licensing objectives and must have regard to the Secretary of State's National Guidance created under Section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003 and the Council's own Statement of Licensing Policy.

There were no representations opposing the application from responsible authorities. Representations have been received from the interested parties on the grounds of the prevention of public nuisance, public safety, prevention of crime and protection of children.

The Applicant attended and was represented by a licensing agent who made submissions on her behalf.

The premises are situated within a Cumulative Impact Zone (CIZ) as set out in Annexe 1 to the Council's policy. Where representations are received against an application in the CIZ zone, there is a rebuttable presumption under the CIZ policy to refuse the application unless the applicant can

demonstrate that the grant of the licence will not add to existing problems in the area.

DECISION

The Sub-Committee considered all representations and submissions and decided to grant the application with conditions as below.

REASONS

The Licensing Sub-Committee has considered an application for a new premises licence for The Hop Inn, 122 North Street, Hornchurch, Essex, RM11 1SU.

One local resident provided written representations as an interested party. The primary issue raised was that of public nuisance by extractor fans and generator noise from existing businesses, with a fear that this would be exacerbated by a new business in the area.

The Licensing Sub-Committee noted that the representations raised by the interested party were not directly attributable to the Applicant or Premises, and seemed to be related to noise generally from a business rather than from a licensable activity.

The applicants agent confirmed that they had proposed conditions in writing as a response to the interested party written representations. These additional conditions would reduce public nuisance by limiting smokers outside after 9pm, and limiting glass bottles to external refuse containers only between 10am – 8pm.

The applicant offered a further condition of not allowing patrons to take glass outside of the premises.

The Sub-Committee questioned the applicant on their knowledge of the licensing objectives and were satisfied with the applicants knowledge of the same.

The licensing Sub-Committee considered with care the representations made by the responsible authorities and the applicant.

The conditions agreed by the Applicant were found to be sufficient to ensure that the licensing objectives would be promoted.

Having considered all submissions the Sub-Committee decided to grant the licence as follows:

Opening times:

1. Mon to Thu from 12:00 to 22:50 hours.

- 2. Fri to Sat from 12:00 to 23:50 hours.
- 3. Sun 12:00 from to 22:20 hours.
- 4. Good Friday, Xmas Eve from 12:00 to 00:20 hours.
- 5. New Years Eve from 12:00 to 00:50 hours.

Sale of Alcohol (on and off premises only)

- 1. Mon to Thu from 12:00 to 22:30 hours.
- 2. Fri to Sat from 12:00 to 23:30 hours.
- 3. Sun 12:00 from to 22:00 hours.
- 4. Good Friday, Xmas Eve from 12:00 to 00:00 hours.
- 5. New Years Eve from 12:00 to 00:30 hours.

Conditions:

- 1. CCTV shall be installed at the premises.
 - a. CCTV implementation will be to the Information Commission Standards.
 - b. The CCTV system shall be maintained in good working condition and record the premises 24 hours every day.
 - c. Records shall be retained for a minimum of 31 days and be made available to the Police and Licensing Authority immediately on request.
 - d. The equipment shall have suitable export methods to CD/DVD/USB
 - e. Staff working at the premises shall be trained in the use of the CCTV equipment and a training log will be kept on the premises. This will be made available to the Police and Licensing Authority immediately on request.
 - f. Cameras on the entrance will capture full frame shots of the heads and shoulder of all people entering the premises, of evidential quality in any light condition.
 - g. There shall be signs displayed that CCTV is in operation.
 - h. CCTV shall monitor all areas used by the premises patrons including the area immediately outside front of the premises.
 - i. The CCTV system shall be checked on a weekly basis to ensure that it is working/recording. A record of this shall be recorded in the CCTV log book with the premises licence holder/DPS recording the date and time of the check. The record shall be recorded in a bound and numbered page book.

This register is to be kept on the premises at all times and made available to the Police and the authorised council officers immediately upon request. Full books shall be retained at the premises for a period of 12 months.

j. Should the CCTV become non-functional the Premises License Holder / DPS shall take immediate steps to rectify the situation as soon as possible and inform the Licensing Authority immediately.

2. Challenge 25 will be implemented.

- a. Where customers appear under the age of 25 and attempt to purchase alcohol or other age restricted products, they shall be asked for proof of age.
- b. The following proofs of age are the only ones to be accepted: Proof of Age Cards bearing the "PASS" hologram symbol; UK photo Driving License; Passport.
- c. Challenge 25 notices will be displayed.
- d. No Proof, No Sale signage shall be displayed at the window and inside the shop.
- e. Signage will be displayed reminding customers that no alcohol shall be sold to customers Under 18 as it is a criminal offence.
- f. Refusal / Incident book to be maintained and kept on the premises at all times. This will be retained for 12 months and made available to the police or Licensing Authority immediately upon request.
- g. Book to be examined at least weekly by DPS with date/time of examination endorsed on book.
- h. No person under 18 shall be permitted on the premises, unless accompanied by an adult. No persons under 16 years of age shall be permitted on the premises at any time.

3. Training:

a. Staff shall be trained in the responsible sale of alcohol, including all new staff members. Details of all training shall be recorded and provided to the Police or Licensing Authority immediately on request.

- b. All staff shall have a refresher training every 3 months for the sale of Alcohol.
- Clear and legible notices shall be displayed in a prominent position near the exit door(s) requesting that customers leave quietly to avoid disturbing local residents.
- 5. The area immediately outside the premises shall be regularly inspected and any litter, food containers, bottles, cans or glasses emanating from the premises shall be removed and properly disposed of as trade waste.
- 6. The capacity shall be limited to 60 customers.
- 7. A clear and legible notice shall be displayed in a prominent position in the smoking area asking customers to respect nearby residents and to be quiet whilst smoking outside the premises.
- 8. A maximum of 5 persons shall be permitted to smoke outside the premises after 2100 hours.
- 9. No glass bottles or other waste material shall be removed from the premises and emptied into waste containers or removed for disposal between 20.00 hours and 10.00 hours.
- 10. Deliveries and collections shall not be carried out before 07.00 hours or after 20.00 hours.

Chairman	